

The Impact of Advance Organizers in Virtual Classrooms on the Development of Integrated Science Process Skills during the Crises

Abstract

The current study aimed to identify the impact of advance organizers in virtual classrooms on the development of integrated science process skills at the time of disasters. The sample of the study consisted of 64 master's students in vocational education techniques. They were randomly divided into two equal groups. The two groups through virtual classrooms studied the "Research Project" course, with the use of advance organizers with the first group, and without the use of advance organizers with the second group. The Card of Integrated Science Processes Skills Assessment was utilized as a tool to accomplish the aim of this study. The findings indicated that the use of advance organizers in the virtual classes had an impact on the development of the skills axes of integrative science operations (procedural definition, identification and control of variables, questions and hypotheses, procedures and experimentation, and interpretation of results), and on the skills of integrative science operations as a whole.

Keywords: virtual classrooms; advance organizers; integrative science; integrative science processes skills; Covid-19

Introduction

Closing institutions of education is a non-drug measure employed in several nations dealing with epidemics. [1]. The option is to switch from traditional education to online learning since students are not permitted to attend educational establishments [2]. Virtual classrooms are one of the main forms of e-learning that share some similarities with real classrooms [2, 3]. It is a flexible, practical and accessible online learning environment that is not restricted by location [4, 5].

Najran University also provides its employees with Learning Management System, which is the Blackboard. This system is characterized by its ability to retain the content of the course. It also allows synchronous and asynchronous discussions, through which electronic tests can be conducted, and various multimedia files can be utilized [6]. Virtual classes are one of the e-learning tools available in the university's Blackboard system. A virtual classroom is defined as an electronic classroom that can be expanded in time, space, and content [7, 8]. It offers various environments of learning that are largely characterized by enabling video and audio broadcasts and discussion boards [9]. It is called virtual since it overcomes spatial constraints (users can attend the virtual class from different locations), and time constraints (the virtual session can be recorded and made available to users for viewing at any time) [10, 11]. The use of virtual classrooms in the teaching and learning processes has many advantages, such as removing geographical barriers, ease of entry and recording of the session, reducing anxiety and enhancing motivation to learn, and improving communication and collaboration [12-15].

It is worth noting that the concept of advance organizers was first proposed by Ausubel in the 1960s [12]. It is a term that refers to the introductory material that is presented before the training material [16]. In order to integrate new knowledge to the students' prior knowledge, advance organizers give information in the form of concepts and linkages between concepts prior to learning [17, 18]. In brief, the ability to recall and combine existing knowledge with new information offered in learning

Comment[Author1]: I think just 'during Crises' would be better.

Comment[Author2]: Problems with tense here. Either 'the study aimed' or 'the current study aims'. Ensure tense is consistent throughout.

Deleted[Author]: (

Deleted[Author]:)

Comment[Author3]: 'Non-drug' is not the right term. Perhaps 'non-medical' would be better.

Comment[Author4]: More than several - many.

Comment[Author5]: I would state where Najran University is. This may be obvious to you but might not be to international readers.

Comment[Author6]: Some good definitions of terms in this paragraph.

situations is referred to as advance organization [19]. It is mainly used to activate the learner's prior knowledge in order to better understand its similarity with the new information under study [20]. Advance organizers can also be used to stimulate task practice by creating meaning for the learner, as it can clarify the learning objective and provide a context in which the learner is motivated to learn how to accomplish the task [21]. Advance organizers also have commendable advantages for positively influencing students' acquisition of concepts [22]. In addition, any advance organizers include a set of procedures represented in providing previous knowledge, establishing clear links between previous knowledge and new information, teaching new vocabulary in the same context, and highlighting key vocabulary [23].

Deleted[Author]: ers

Deleted[Author]: s

Comment[Author7]: Very clear and welcome explanation of AO in this paragraph.

Deleted[Author]: and

Comment[Author8]: Another very astute explanation of terms/concepts.

Comment[Author9]: It's unclear to me the significance of this course. This is the course that the students attend at Najran University? Make this clearer nearer where you explain the purpose of this study.

Comment[Author10]: This I presume is your research gap. I would discuss a little more the literature on this area. I know you're limited in terms of time here, but perhaps you could cut back slightly on the conceptual explanations above and produce a bigger paragraph on the empirical basis for AO in virtual classroom contexts and why it is lacking.

Comment[Author11]: This section needs to be bigger and set out more clearly the rationale behind your study, its aims and perhaps some research questions. I know you've touched on these in your abstract but your abstract serves to summarise the content in your essay - it doesn't substitute what is said in the introduction but summarises it.

You need to set out in your introduction: what your research topic is (you've done that), why it is important to study (I think you've done that as well), what you hope to achieve through it (your aims - are you closing a research gap, recommending policy, etc.), and your objectives/research questions (specifically, what does this study measure or ask).

Deleted[Author]: the

Comment[Author12]: Do you mean 'proposes'? There are quite a few word choices in the essay that are not quite right. It reads as though it was perhaps written by someone whose first language is not English. This could be improved through closer proof-reading.

Integrated Science Process Skills

Science process skills are abilities that enable students to conduct valid research by acting and thinking as scientists [24-26]. Science process skills can be classified into two basic models. The first model refers to basic skills (including prediction, measurement, classification, and observation). The second model refers to the skills of integrative science process (includes procedural definition, identification and control of variables, questions and hypotheses, procedures and experimentation, and interpretation of results) [27]. Providing students with integrated science process skills is of a great advantage, as these skills help the students in searching for new knowledge and solving problems in different situations, and encourage them to gain knowledge from practice [28]. In addition, students' use of these skills enables them to process and structure scientific information and understand the nature of the science they are studying [29, 30]. Given that integrated science processes skills offer various ways and means to access scientific information, they can help students to think scientifically [31-33]. There are also some university courses, such as the "Research Project" course, that depend mainly on the skills of integrated science processes, and therefore the needs of the learners must be met by developing these skills.

Empirical studies also found that advance organizers (as one of the methods of providing educational material to the learner) help increase students' achievement and enhance their ability to learn, and lead to the retention of learning [34-36]. Accordingly, researchers believe that advance organizers developed in the context of the virtual classroom may be useful for developing the skills of integrated science process of the "Research Project" course, which are not well explored or understood.

It is noteworthy that this study came during the spread of the new Corona pandemic (Covid-19) in most countries of the world. In addition, the subsequent closure of educational institutions in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as a non-drug measure applied by many countries to limit the spread of the epidemic, and if digital transformation is a strategic goal for many universities in general. This transformation becomes an urgent necessity in times of epidemics to continue the educational process. Bearing in mind that the "Research Project" course relies mainly on the skills of integrated science processes.

Methodology

The researchers used an experimental approach with semi-experimental designs, which purposes to examine the effect of the independent variable on the dependent variable, and this required the use of a semi-experimental design, as in the following table.

Table 1.

Research tool (Integrated science process skills Assessment card)

The researchers designed a card to assess the skills of integrated science process, by looking at the educational literature and referring to previous studies that dealt with the skills of integrated science process, such as Elfeky and Elbyaly [37], Hernawati, Amin [38], JUHJI and NUANGCHALERM [39], Sharma [40], Elfeky and Elbyaly [41]. To confirm the authenticity of the evaluation card, it was shown to a panel of experts and specialists. Where the arbitrators were asked to express their opinions on the evaluation card in terms of the appropriateness of the sub-skills to measure each domain that represents a skill of the integrated science operations skills.

The extent of the clarity of the phrases and the soundness of their linguistic formulation, and what can be added or deleted from those phrases, and any other observations or suggestions. In its final form, the card consisted of five domains, each domain expressing a main skill and one of the skills of integrative science operations (procedural definition, identification and control of variables, questions and hypotheses, procedures and experimentation, and interpretation of results). The first and second domains of the evaluation card included five sub-skills in each of them. While the third and fourth domains included 6 sub-skills in each of them. The last domain included four sub-skills. A five-point Likert scale (1 = very little to 5 = very much) was used for each of the sub-skills on the card. In addition, by using Cronbach's Alpha for the internal consistency of the paragraphs, the stability of the scorecard was verified. This is done by applying the card to the research plans of a sample of female students not included in the actual study (30 female students). The stability coefficient value was (0.88) for the card as a whole. Thus, the card is ready to evaluate the students' final research plans (after the experiment) by three specialized and impartial faculty members. That is, each research plan is evaluated three times with three degrees, after which the researchers calculate the average score of the three evaluators for each research plan to be the final score for each student.

Ensure That the Two Groups are Equal in Skills of Integrated Science Process

Each student participating in the study was assigned via an advertisement in the Blackboard e-learning management system at the beginning of the first week of the study (Sunday) with a research plan (to be completed within a week as a maximum) that includes procedural definition, identification and control of variables, questions and hypotheses, procedures and experimentation, and interpretation for results. In addition, by evaluating the initial research plans by an independent faculty member using the evaluation card, evidence of the pre-application of the skills of integrative science operations is obtained. ANOVA was used to analyze the data results through the SPSS version 24 program to identify the significance of the differences among the mean scores of the two experimental groups to verify their equivalence before the start of the experiment. Table (4) reveals the differences among the scores of the participants in the pre-application using the Integrated Science Processes Assessment Card.

Table 2.

The results presented in Table (2) show the differences in the mean scores between the two study groups when the integrated science processes assessment card was used as a pre-application. With regard to their skills in procedural definition, identification and control of variables, questions and hypotheses, procedures and experimentation,

Comment[Author13]: I've had a look at the table. It sets out the research design but I'm not sure what else it's supposed to show, if anything. If just the design, then it's fine.

Comment[Author14]: These names don't need to be fully capitalised.

Comment[Author15]: Who were this panel of experts and specialists, how did you come by them? Are they professors/lecturers in your university?

Comment[Author16]: Something that's not been discussed and should be discussed in a methodology is *why* you arrived at these methods. Why not other methods? Why not use a qualitative design and conduct interviews? If an experimental design, what are the hypotheses and how does the design test them? You need to set out what methods you've chosen and that you've chosen them because they can answer your research questions/test your hypothesis in a specific way.

Comment[Author17]: What are these sub-skills?

Comment[Author18]: Good mention of why you've included this, how it works, and what the result means. We need more explanations like this across the paper.

Comment[Author19]: This is more clear.

Deleted[Author]: S

Comment[Author20]: I'm unsure what this subheading is supposed to tell me. It seems more like an instruction than an indication of what the following section describes.

Comment[Author21]: A little more information on who the participants were would be welcome. What is their level of study (undergraduate or postgraduate), what is the gender split, etc. Was the sample randomised in any way or is it convenience/purposive? Why is this a good sample, can findings from it be generalised and why?

Comment[Author22]: This makes sense to me, good explanation.

Comment[Author23]: I can't see all tables, so I can't really judge if you're measuring the right things here or remarking upon their features accurately.

results interpretation, and the skills of integrative science processes as a whole. Not all of them are statistically significant at the level ($\alpha \leq 0.05$). That is, all participants were homogeneous and had equal abilities in the skills of integrative science operations before exposure to the experiment.

Experimental processing material

In order to present the content of the "Research Project" course through the virtual classes, the educational material was organized into 10 separate lectures to introduce the topics of procedural definition, identification and control of variables, questions and hypotheses, procedures and experimentation, and interpretation of results. Moreover, after analyzing several Instructional Design models for e-learning and coming up with a set of indicative steps to follow in the light of designing and producing those lectures in order to fulfill the goals of the current research. Where learners' characteristics were taken into account, goals and content were set, and educational activities were designed. Accordingly, the lectures were presented to the two research groups through synchronous virtual classes through the Collaborate Ultra Experience LTI application for virtual classes that was developed during the emerging Corona pandemic. Where it was implemented from the beginning of the summer semester for the year 2020 AD at the University of Najran by integrating it with the Blackboard e-learning management system. This application is a unique addition to teachers in universities that use the Blackboard system. It provides the possibility of holding virtual meetings, live lectures, and video conferencing, and the virtual classes through this application allowed the learners of the two study groups a chat room, live audio and video broadcasting, whiteboard, application sharing, synchronous web browsing, and feedback. The first group studied through virtual classrooms with utilize of advance organizers, and the second group studied without utilize of advance organizers.

Deleted[Author]: (

Deleted[Author]:)

Comment[Author24]: How are these lectures related to AO and the LMS? Explain their significance and why they are being mentioned/included in the study.

Results

The dimensional arithmetic mean scores of the research sample were extracted on the integrated science operations skills assessment card by group (first experimental, second experimental), then the Modified gain ratio was calculated. T. test for independent samples was utilized to compare the averages of the adjusted earnings ratio of the two groups, to see if these differences were statistically significant.

Comment[Author25]: This makes more sense to me. However, I'm uncertain how the first group studied using AOs. What was the nature of the intervention? I'm not clear on that part.

Table 3.

According to the previous table, the value of (T) for the variance in adjusted earning percentages for the procedural definition skill scores of the students in the two experimental groups was (4.740). Students in the first group had an average grade of (13.42), while those in the second group received an average grade of (11.02). That is, there are statistically significant differences among the two groups regarding the procedural definition skill in favor of the first group (higher on average). These differences ($p = 0.013 < 0.05$) indicate that the average adjusted earnings ratio of learners in the first group (who studied the course via virtual classes with the use of advance organizers) was higher than the average adjusted earnings ratio of learners in the second group (who studied the course through virtual classes without the use of advance organizers). Therefore, it can be strongly claimed that utilize of advance organizers in the virtual classroom had an impact on the procedural identification skill development of the learners enrolled in the course of "Research Project".

Comment[Author26]: A t-test seems appropriate to use here.

Comment[Author27]: Nice and clear interpretation of the results.

According to the previous table also, the value of (T) for the variance in adjusted earning percentages for the identifying and controlling variables skills scores of the students in the two experimental groups was (5.948). The first group of students' average score was (14.21). While students in the second group received an average score of (11.63). That is, there are statistically significant differences among the two groups regarding the skill of identifying and controlling variables in favor of the first group. These differences ($p = 0.021 < 0.05$) show that students in the first group had an average adjusted earnings ratio that was higher than students were in the second group. Thus, it can be said that utilize of advance organizers in the virtual classes had an impact on developing the skill of identifying and controlling variables for students.

Comment[Author28]: Where do earnings come into it? Are you sure you don't mean to use a different term here?

According to the previous table also, the value of (T) for the variance in adjusted earning percentages for the formulating questions and hypotheses skill scores of the students in the two experimental groups was (6.9). Students in the first group received an average score of (18.02), while those in the second group received an average score of (15.16). That is, there are statistically significant differences among the two groups regarding the skill of formulating questions and hypotheses in favor of the first group. These differences ($p = 0.034 < 0.05$) show that students in the first group had an average adjusted earnings ratio that was higher than students were in the second group. Thus, it can be said that utilize of advance organizers in the virtual classes had an impact on developing the skill of formulating questions and hypotheses for students.

According to the previous table also, the value of (T) for the variance in adjusted earning percentages for the skill of procedures and experimentation scores of the students in the two experimental groups was (5.4). Students in the first group received an average score of (17.06), while those in the second group received an average score of (14.70). That is, there are statistically significant differences among the two groups regarding the skill of procedures and experimentation in favor of the first group. These disparities ($p = 0.046 < 0.05$) show that students in the first group had an average adjusted earnings ratio that was higher than students were in the second group. Therefore, it can be said that utilize of advance organizers in the virtual classroom had an impact on the development of learners' procedures and experimentation skills.

Besides, according to the previous table, the value of (T) for the variance in adjusted earning percentages for the interpreting the results skill scores of the students in the two experimental groups was (3.457). Students in the first group scored an average of (11.49), while those in the second group scored an average of (10.09). That is, there are statistically significant differences among the two groups regarding the skill of interpreting the results in favor of the first group. These disparities ($p = 0.043 < 0.05$) show that students in the first group had an average adjusted earnings ratio that was higher than students were in the second group. Therefore, it can be said that utilize of advance organizers in the virtual classes had an impact on developing students' interpretation of results.

Comment[Author29]: These results would all be much stronger if they were related to specific hypotheses/RQs.

Finally, according to the previous table, the value of (T) for the variance in adjusted earning percentages for the scores of integrated science process skills as a whole of the students in the two experimental groups was (10.608). Students in the first group had an average grade of (74.19), while those in the second group received an average grade of (62.59). That is, there are statistically significant differences among the two groups regarding the skills of integrative science processes as a whole in favor of the first group. These differences ($p = 0.036 < 0.05$) show that students in the first group

had an average adjusted earnings ratio that was higher than students were in the second group. Therefore, it can be said that utilize of advance organizers in the virtual classes had an impact on the development of students' integrated science operations skills as a whole.

Discussion

The Integrative Science Processes skills of learners enrolled in the "Research Project" course were investigated. Where the results indicated that utilize of advance organizers in the virtual classes had an impact on the development of integrated science process skills and its main areas, namely procedural definition, identification and control of variables, questions and hypotheses, procedures and experimentation, and interpretation of results. The findings of the current research were consistent with those of earlier research that examined the effect of utilizing advance organizers on different learning outcomes. Among them is the study of Birabil [42], which found that the teaching strategy based on advance organizers improved the academic achievement of students. Advance organizers have also greatly enhanced retention. The research by Babaei, Izadpanah [43] also indicated the effectiveness of advance organizers in improving students' listening comprehension. Also the research of Van der Meij [16], which confirmed the effectiveness of advance organizers included in educational videos in developing students' programming skills. Nevisi, Hosseinpur [44] also confirmed the effectiveness of advance organizers in developing learners' ability to write an English abstract. This is additionally to the study of Susan and Oche [45], which in turn confirmed the impact of advance organizers on the development of students' attitude towards biology.

Comment[Author30]: Good discussion here within the context of the literature.

The effectiveness of many other methods and strategies in developing the skills of integrative science operations has also been verified. As in the research of Sharma [40], which confirmed the effectiveness of the seven-stage educational model 7E in developing the skills of integrative science operations for ninth grade students. In addition to the Harahap, Nasution [46] study, which supported the efficacy of the blended learning approach in fostering science operations abilities during plant tissue culture. Additionally, research by Prayitno, Corebima [47] also confirmed the inquiry-based, learning effectiveness on developing science process skills for seventh grade students.

Deleted[Author]: a

Deleted[Author]: the

Deleted[Author]: , which

Recommendations

- Training faculty members on the skills of employing advance organizers in virtual classrooms.
- Using other technology products to develop the skills of integrated science processes among learners.
- Carrying out similar studies in other departments where boys and girls are allowed to enroll, to confirm the success of using advance organizers in virtual classes in other environments.
- Conducting studies to reveal the impact of other methods and strategies on developing the skills of integrative science operations during exceptional global circumstances.

Comment[Author31]: More discussion is required before you arrive at these recommendations. You may think it's obvious that the results should entail these recommendations but you need to connect the dots for the reader.

Conclusion

The current study aimed to identify the impact of advance organizers in virtual classrooms on the development of the skills of integrated science operations at the time of disasters. The Card of Integrated Science Processes Skills Assessment was utilized as a tool to accomplish the aim of this study. The findings indicated that the use of advance organizers in the virtual classes had an impact on the development of the skills axes of integrative science operations (procedural definition, identification and control of variables, questions and hypotheses, procedures and experimentation, and interpretation of results), and on the skills of integrative science operations as a whole. Research importance is benefit from the digital transformation of the educational process in the face of disasters and epidemics that our societies may be exposed to at any time. Besides, keeping pace with technological progress in the educational field, thus contributing to the optimal employment of e-learning systems in university education. Additionally, developing the skills of integrative science processes in the "research project" course for master's students in vocational education techniques.

Comment[Author32]: Try and vary the wording of this farther away from that of your abstract.

Comment[Author33]: These concluding sentences are worded poorly and don't really summarise what the study is saying. Think about its contributions and why these are significant.

REFERENCES

1. Doyle, O., *COVID-19: Exacerbating educational inequalities*. Public Policy, 2020. **9**: p. 1-10.
2. Basilaia, G. and D. Kvavadze, *Transition to online education in schools during a SARS-CoV-2 coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic in Georgia*. Pedagogical Research, 2020. **5**(4).
3. Fitton, I.S., D.J. Finnegan, and M.J. Proulx, *Immersive virtual environments and embodied agents for e-learning applications*. PeerJ Computer Science, 2020. **6**: p. e315.
4. Elbyaly and Elfeky, *THE EFFECTIVENESS OF PROJECT-BASED LEARNING ON ENHANCING THE CRITICAL THINKING SKILLS OF OPTIMAL INVESTMENT STUDENTS*. Ann. For. Res, 2023. **66**(1): p. 1569-1583.
5. Elbyaly and Elfeky, *THE EFFECTIVENESS OF A PROGRAM BASED ON AUGMENTED REALITY ON ENHANCING THE SKILLS OF SOLVING COMPLEX PROBLEMS AMONG STUDENTS OF THE OPTIMAL INVESTMENT DIPLOMA*. Ann. For. Res, 2023. **66**(1): p. 1569-1583.
6. Elfeky and Elbyaly, *THE IMPACT OF AUGMENTED REALITY TECHNOLOGY ON DEVELOPING HAND EMBROIDERY SKILLS AMONG STUDENTS OF THE COLLEGE OF EDUCATION*. Ann. For. Res, 2023. **66**(1): p. 1584-1594.
7. Ricolfi, A.T., *Virtual classes and virtual motives of Quot schemes on threefolds*. Advances in Mathematics, 2020. **369**: p. 107182.
8. Far, I.K., et al., *The interplay of physical and social wellbeing in older adults: investigating the relationship between physical training and social interactions with virtual social environments*. PeerJ Computer Science, 2015. **1**: p. e30.
9. Ruthotto, I., et al., *Lurking and participation in the virtual classroom: The effects of gender, race, and age among graduate students in computer science*. Computers & Education, 2020. **151**: p. 103854.
10. Ahmed, Alharbi, and Elfeky, *Effectiveness Of A Proposed Training Program In Developing Twenty-First Century Skills And Creative Teaching Skills Among Female Student Teachers, Specializing In Early Childhood*. Journal of Positive School Psychology, 2022: p. 4316-4330.
11. Capuccini, M., et al., *On-demand virtual research environments using microservices*. PeerJ Computer Science, 2019. **5**: p. e232.

12. Suwais, K. and A. Alshahrani, *The Impact of Virtual Classes on Students' Performance in Open Learning Environments: The Case of Arab Open University, Saudi Arabia*. J. Comput. Sci., 2018. **14**(1): p. 14-22.
13. Elfeky and Elbyaly, *Multimedia: Different Processes*. Interactive Multimedia-Multimedia Production and Digital Storytelling, 2019.
14. Elbyaly, *Heritage Revival by the Use of Saudi Bedouin Textiles in the Gulf Mantle*. Journal of Home Economics, 2016. **26**(4).
15. Elbyaly and El-Fawakhry, *Online teaching course to develop STUDENTS' CREATIVITY in handmade embroidery*. British Journal of Education, 2016. **4**(13): p. 30-51.
16. Van der Meij, H., *Advance organizers in videos for software training of Chinese students*. British journal of educational technology, 2019. **50**(3): p. 1368-1380.
17. Nisyah, M., et al. *Inquiry learning model with advance organizers to improve students' understanding on physics concepts*. in *Journal of Physics: Conference Series*. 2020.
18. Men, L., N. Bryan-Kinns, and L. Bryce, *Designing spaces to support collaborative creativity in shared virtual environments*. PeerJ Computer Science, 2019. **5**: p. e229.
19. Han-Chin, L. and C. Hsueh-Hua. *Investigations of the Effect of Format of Advance Organizers on Learners' Achievement on Understanding of Science Concepts*. in *2017 6th IIAI International Congress on Advanced Applied Informatics (IIAI-AAI)*. 2017. IEEE.
20. Zheng, R.Z., et al., *Effects of multimedia and schema induced analogical reasoning on science learning*. Journal of computer assisted learning, 2008. **24**(6): p. 474-482.
21. Masada, T.S.Y., *Immediate versus delayed feedback in promoting student teachers skills for lesson plan implementation*. Thouqan Saleem Yakoub Masadeh and Abdellah Ibrahim Mohammed Elfeky (2017) Immediate Versus Delayed Feedback in Promoting Student Teachers Skills for Lesson Plan Implementation, British Journal of Education, 2017. **5**(8): p. 43-58.
22. McDonald, D. and R. Vines, *Flipping Advanced Organizers Into an Individualized Meaning-Making Learning Process Through Sketching*. Teaching Artist Journal, 2019. **17**(1-2): p. 51-61.
23. Elfeky and Elbyaly, *The use of data analytics technique in learning management system to develop fashion design skills and technology acceptance*. Interactive Learning Environments, 2021: p. 1-18.
24. Chan, J.R. and M.P.E. Morales, *Investigating The Effects Of Customized Cognitive Fitness Classroom On Students Physics Achievement And Integrated Science Process Skills*. International Journal of Research Studies in Education, 2017. **6**(3): p. 81-95.
25. Alshammery, F.M. and W.S. Alhalafawy, *Digital Platforms and the Improvement of Learning Outcomes: Evidence Extracted from Meta-Analysis*. Sustainability, 2023. **15**(2): p. 1305.
26. Alzahrani, F.K. and W.S. Alhalafawy, *Gamification for Learning Sustainability in the Blackboard System: Motivators and Obstacles from Faculty Members' Perspectives*. Sustainability, 2023. **15**(5): p. 4613.
27. Elbyaly and Elfeky, *The role of metacognition in promoting deep learning in MOOCs during COVID-19 pandemic*. PeerJ Computer Science, 2022. **8**: p. e945.
28. Sermsirikarnjana, P., K. Kiddee, and P. Pupat. *An integrated science process skills needs assessment analysis for Thai vocational students and teachers*. in *Asia-Pacific Forum on Science Learning and Teaching*. 2017. The Education University of Hong Kong, Department of Science and
29. Duruk, U., et al., *Examining the Learning Outcomes Included in the Turkish Science Curriculum in Terms of Science Process Skills: A Document Analysis with Standards-Based Assessment*. International Journal of Environmental and Science Education, 2017. **12**(2): p. 117-142.

30. Najmi, A.H., W.S. Alhalafawy, and M.Z.T. Zaki, *Developing a Sustainable Environment Based on Augmented Reality to Educate Adolescents about the Dangers of Electronic Gaming Addiction*. Sustainability, 2023. **15**(4): p. 3185.
31. Yumusak, G.K., *Science Process Skills in Science Curricula Applied in Turkey*. Journal of education and practice, 2016. **7**(20): p. 94-98.
32. Alanzi, N.S.A. and W.S. Alhalafawy, *A Proposed Model for Employing Digital Platforms in Developing the Motivation for Achievement Among Students of Higher Education During Emergencies*. Journal of Positive School Psychology, 2022. **6**(9): p. 4921-4933.
33. Alzahrani, Alshammary, and Alhalafawy, *Gamified Platforms: The Impact of Digital Incentives on Engagement in Learning During Covide-19 Pandemic*. Cult. Manag. Sci. Educ, 2022. **7**: p. 75-87.
34. Popova, A., P.A. Kirschner, and R. Joiner, *Effects of primer podcasts on stimulating learning from lectures: how do students engage?* British Journal of Educational Technology, 2014. **45**(2): p. 330-339.
35. Elfeky, Alharbi, and Ahmed, *The Effect Of Project-Based Learning In Enhancing Creativity And Skills Of Arts Among Kindergarten Student Teachers*. Journal of Positive School Psychology, 2022. **6**(8): p. 2182-2191.
36. Almalki, A.D.A. and A.I.M. Elfeky, *The Effect of Immediate and Delayed Feedback in Virtual Classes on Mathematics Students' Higher Order Thinking Skills*. Journal of Positive School Psychology, 2022: p. 432-440-432-440.
37. Elfeky and Elbyaly, *The use of CSCL environment to promote students' achievement and skills in handmade embroidery*. European Journal of Training and Development Studies, 2017. **4**(2): p. 19-32.
38. Hernawati, D., et al., *The effectiveness of scientific approach using encyclopedia as learning materials in improving students' science process skills in science*. Jurnal Pendidikan IPA Indonesia, 2018. **7**(3): p. 266-272.
39. JUHJI, J. and P. NUANGCHALERM, *Interaction between science process skills and scientific attitudes of students towards technological pedagogical content knowledge*. Journal for the Education of Gifted Young Scientists, 2020. **8**(1): p. 1-16.
40. Sharma, S., *Fostering the integrated science process skills among secondary school students through 7E learning instructional model*. Studies in Indian Place Names, 2020. **40**(40): p. 2100-2109.
41. Elfeky and Elbyaly, *The impact of learning object repository (lor) in the development of pattern making skills of home economics students*. British Journal of Education, 2016. **4**(2): p. 87-99.
42. Birabil, S.T., *EFFECTS OF ADVANCE ORGANIZERS TEACHING STRATEGY ON HEARING IMPAIRED STUDENTS' ACHIEVEMENT AND RETENTION IN SOCIAL STUDIES IN RIVERS STATE*. European Journal of Research and Reflection in Educational Sciences Vol, 2020. **8**(4).
43. Babaei, S., S. Izadpanah, and G.C. Araújo, *Comparing the effects of different advance organizers on EFL learners' listening comprehension: Key vocabularies, previewing comprehension questions, and multimedia annotations*. Cogent Education, 2019. **6**(1): p. 1705666.
44. Nevisi, R.B., R.M. Hosseinpour, and R. Kolahkaj, *The Impact of Marginal Glosses and Network Tree Advance Organizers on EFL Learners' Summary Writing Ability*. Journal of Asia TEFL, 2019. **16**(4): p. 1168.
45. Susan, U.E. and O.D. Oche, *Effect of Advance Organizer on Senior Secondary Students' Interest in Biology in Makurdi Metropolis*. ATBU Journal of Science, Technology and Education, 2018. **6**(3): p. 18-26.

46. Harahap, F., N.E.A. Nasution, and B. Manurung, *The Effect of Blended Learning on Student's Learning Achievement and Science Process Skills in Plant Tissue Culture Course*. International Journal of Instruction, 2019. **12**(1): p. 521-538.
47. Prayitno, B.A., et al., *Closing the science process skills gap between students with high and low level academic achievement*. Journal of Baltic Science Education, 2017. **16**(2): p. 266.